QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – October 05, 2015
	Question 1: Will the Government reissue the SF33 to state that offers will be received until 1600 (hour) local time 10/15/15 (date)?

Response:  Yes, SF33 is revised to show received by date of 10/15/2015.    

Question 2: The DOE excel file containing the cost model exhibits to be submitted "DE-SOL-0005395-Exhibit-B-Cost-Exhibits Revised 10-01-2015" appears to have a formula error. In the Option Period for Contract Year 4, the total value for the subcontracts is correct at $20M. However, there is a hardcoded value of $16,850,000 for the month of October GFY20 (Row 219). This value should be $1,850,000.  Will the Government reissue the excel file or shall we modify the excel file accordingly?



Response:  The cost model excel file cost element “Total Subcontracts/Consultants” on Exhibit B2 was hard coded with the incorrect monthly total.  DOE made the correction on DE-SOL-0005395-Exhibit-B-Cost-Exhibits Revised 10-05-2015.  No change to the annual total.    

Question 3: Can DOE please confirm that the total “plug” numbers below, which are also provided in exhibits B1-B3 in the revised template for the Supplies/Materials and the Subcontracts/Consultants, are inclusive of the applicable burdens? 

Subcontractors/Consultants:
[bookmark: _GoBack]CLIN 2:  $200,000,000

Supplies/Materials:  $62,541,535
CLIN 1:  $9,089,328
CLIN 2:  $21,011,178  
CLIN 3:  $32,441,029

Response:  They are not inclusive of applicable indirect rates.  Indirect rates should be applied to these plug numbers as appropriate.  


QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – September 14, 2015

Q.1: 	The DOE excel file containing the cost model exhibits to be submitted "DE-SOL-0005395-Exhibit-B-Cost-Exhibits Revised 08-25-2015" appears to have a formula error. The amount provided by DOE to be used for the cost element "Materials and Supplies" for each CLIN by month does not sum to the Total cost for each year.  Will DOE reissue the file to correct the error, or would DOE like for the bidders to correct the formula? If the bidders are to correct the formula, which is correct - the monthly total or the annual total.
RESPONSE:	
The cost model excel file cost element “Materials and Supplies” on Exhibit B1 was hard coded with the incorrect monthly total.  DOE made the correction on DE-SOL-0005395-Exhibit-B-Cost-Exhibits Revised 09-14-2015.  No change to the annual total.    
Q.2:	 Amendment 003, 1.7 FILL IN CONTRACT CLAUSES (06-03-2014), Section B.1 SERVICES BEING ACQUIRED, TRANSITION, requests for the Total Estimated Cost (no Fee) for Transition to be provided by the Offeror.  Amendment 004, 1.7 FILL IN CONTRACT CLAUSES (Revised 08-07-2015), Section B.1 SERVICES BEING ACQUIRED, TRANSITION, does not request the Total Estimated Cost (no Fee) for Transition to be provided by the Offeror.
Is it the Government’s intention to exclude the Total Estimated Cost for Transition?

RESPONSE:	
NETL requires the Total Estimated Cost for Transition to be filled in.  The FILL IN CONTRACT CLAUSES is updated to include the fill in.  DOE made the correction on FILL-IN-OF-CONTRACT-CLAUSES Revised 09-14-2015.    

QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – September 02, 2015

Q.1: 	In the excel file containing the required cost volume reports titled "DE-SOL-0005395-Exhibit-B-Cost-Exhibits Revised 08-25-2015", Exhibit A (Summary Cost Schedule by CLIN and Contract Period) is structured to reflect the original proposal structure: five-year base period and five-year option period. Since the amended proposal has changed to a three-year base, (two) one-year option periods, and a five-year option, will DOE revise the Exhibit A to reflect the new contract structure or maintain the same structure that was used in the RFP, pre-Amendments 004 and 005? 
RESPONSE:	
The excel file containing the required cost volume is structured by contract years and award term years, not base period and option periods.  The Exhibit A is a summary designed to separate the contract period (first five years of performance) from the award term period (last five years of performance).  No revision is required to this form.  The fill-in of contract clauses document is where the base period and option period is segregated for insertion into Section B and any subsequent award.  No revision is required form the response to this question.
Q.2: 	With regard to the requirements specified in Section I.23, the e-FOCI Web site requires that registrants, “Select the FOCI Office that will review your FOCI Submission when it is completed.” The correct selection is not apparent. Which office listed on the e-FOCI Web site will review FOCI documentation when submitted by Offerors? 
RESPONSE:
Section I clauses represent contract clauses that will be included in any subsequent award issued from this solicitation.  The FOCI information identified in your question is not required until a contract award is issued resulting from this solicitation.  No revision is required from the response to this question.
Q.3: 	NETL Questions and Responses dated August 25, 2015, Questions 2 stated in part that, “ESH&Q data submitted by the corporate entity should be updated if new information is available.” The headings in Section L.40F, Exhibit F however, still require that Offerors submit information for years 2010 thru 2014. If new information is available, should Offerors revise the headers to require information for years 2011 thru 2015? 
RESPONSE:
The previous questions and responses dated August 25, 2015 indicated that “if new information is available” then updated ESH&Q data should be submitted by the corporate entity.  The headers to Exhibit F are not required to be changed as the solicitation still requires the information for years 2010 through 2014.  If new information is available for 2015 then it should be submitted in addition to the years requested.  A form, or revised form, is not being provided since not all offerors will have new information.  If new information is available, then it should be submitted and can be done by adding a separate sheet or adding an additional column to the form.  It is not NETL’s intent to revise the form for the potential of additional information.  No revision is required form the response to this question.
QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – August 25, 2015

Q.1	Please confirm the previously submitted Past Performance Questionnaires are still valid and the customers do not need to resubmit them.

RESPONSE:    

If the same past performance references are being used in the revised proposal then new questionnaires are not required.  NETL may consider any recent past performance information related to the references identified in the proposal or that NETL obtains from other sources.  NETL will review information that is available through government databases or through reference contacts.

Q.2	Based on the fact that NETL issued a complete RFP containing Amendment 004, 
0. Should offerors respond only to changes based on the strengths and weaknesses identified regarding our original proposal along with the clarifications and changes outlined in the amendment or
0. Are offerors required to update all elements of the RFP that are impacted by the revised due date?
1. For example: should offerors update the ESH&Q data through the current time?
1. Should offerors update resumes to include the last year of data?
1. Should offerors update experience and past performance to include the last year of data?
1. Should offerors update past performance forms and reissue them to references?
1. Should offerors update company financial information and submit updated annual reports?
RESPONSE:    

Each offeror should submit a complete, stand-alone, revised proposal in response to amendment 4.  Except for past performance questionnaires submitted with the original proposal, no part of the prior proposal will be considered in the evaluation of the revised proposal.  Each offeror has the opportunity to revise all areas of the original proposal based on both the strengths and weaknesses provided regarding its original proposal and the clarifications issued within the amendment.  It is expected that the revised proposal will reflect updated information wherever appropriate.  The revised proposal is expected to contain the offeror’s complete final proposal.  Technical and cost information included in an offeror’s original proposal (with the exception of past performance questionnaires received and past performance information identified from other sources) will not be considered in evaluation of the revised proposal unless included (restated) in the revised proposal.  The page limitations from the solicitation remain in effect and final revised proposal must adhere to those page limitations listed in the RFP.  Offerors are not required or expected to identify the specific changes in their revised proposal (i.e., offerors are not required to highlight changes or to use redline/e strike-outs.  
i. ESH&Q data submitted by the corporate entity should be updated if new information is available. 
ii. Resumes should be updated to reflect current information.
iii. Experience information should be updated if it has changed over the past year or in cases where the teaming structure has changed.  In regards to past performance information, it is not necessary to provide new references and send out new questionnaires, however NETL may review any recent past performance information related to the references provided.  In some instances, the team structure may have changed, which would result in either additions or deletions to references provided based on the changes within the team (including major or critical subcontractors).  The limitation on number of references per entity remains in effect.
iv. Updated past performance questionnaires are not required to be submitted for references previously provided.  However if changes have been made to the references then those additional references should be sent a questionnaire to be completed.  If changes have been made to the point of contact for a specific reference, then updated questionnaires should be submitted.
v. If company financial information has changed then updated information should be submitted.

Q.3	Can offerors replace part of the Past Performance submitted prior with a new set of Past Performance?  If so, please confirm that questionnaires should be received by the closing date of the RFP (Oct 1, 2015). 

RESPONSE:    

As stated above in regards to past performance information, it is not necessary to provide new references and send out new questionnaires.  However NETL may review any recent past performance information related to the references provided.  In some instances, the team structure may have changed, which would result in either additions or deletions to references provided based on the changes within the team (including major or critical subcontractors).  In those instance where additional past performance questionnaires are submitted they must be received by the due date for proposals.

Q.4	In the Amendment document “DE-SOL-0005395 Amendment 004 (8-12-2015)”: In Section J, Attachment D, NETL added a historical reference to a $20M annual value of non-major/non-critical subcontracting work to be performed.  On page 39, under ODCs, Section E.1, NETL is asking offerors to provide 1) a summary listing of anticipated subcontracts or types of subcontracts, 2) a rationale/justification for subcontracts proposed, and 3) the basis for rates used.  
There does not appear to be sufficient information on the number, size, or scope of these non-major/non-critical subcontracts specific to the $20M per year referenced in Attachment D.  Please clarify if NETL’s intent is to add an annual value of $20M to the proposed price based on the core historical FTEs. 

Since the current PWS allows wide variations in the work scope assumed by offerors, and since the award decision should be based on the evaluation criteria (not differing assumptions in the scope or level of effort to be bid):

A) Please provide a list of the non-major, non-critical subcontracts (each subcontract less than $1M annually) by company, scope, and value currently used to address the short term, specialized research needs identified in the PWS (i.e., the subcontracts that make up the $20M annual expenditure for non-major, non-critical subcontracts).
B) Please provide a projection of the changes in research requirements anticipated over the contract base period and the potential impact on NETL’s required level of effort.
C) If this information cannot be provided in a form that will ensure that offerors propose on the same scope and level of effort, please make $20M a NETL specified value to be used throughout the 5-year period covered by the cost estimate.  This approach will ensure that differing assumptions due to a lack of specificity in the PWS (and elsewhere in the solicitation) do not dictate the outcome of an otherwise well run selection process.

RESPONSE:    

A listing of subcontractors by company, scope, and value from the current contract is not available for disclosure.  The $20M per year is a historical reference to provide each offeror with a basis to develop its proposal and is not being provided as “plug number” to be used by each offeror as NETL’s intent is to allow each offeror to determine the best method to fulfill this requirement.  

The offeror’s technical approach will dictate how it proposes to perform this effort.  For instance, if an offeror proposes to perform this effort with corporate reach-back or by self-performing then an appropriate labor and skill mix should be included to demonstrate the level of expertise being proposed (e.g. scientists, engineers, etc.).  However, if an offeror is proposing to fulfill this requirement through subcontracting then the costs should be proposed under the non-major/non-critical subcontract element.  If subcontracting is proposed to fulfill this requirement, then the offeror should describe the subcontracting by providing a summary of types of subcontracts (or named subcontractors), a rationale for why those types are proposed, and the basis for estimating the subcontractors’ costs.  

A listing of specific subcontractors is not required if the offeror proposes to reference the type of subcontractor that it expects to use.  For example, an offeror could describe the planned subcontracting by referencing NAICS codes to describe the type of subcontracting (e.g. 541330 – Engineering Services; 541360 Geophysical Surveying and Mapping Services; 541620 Environmental Consulting Services; 541712 Research and Development in the Physical, Engineering, and Life Sciences, etc.) or by description (e.g. specialty research expertise, specialized academic research expertise, specialty fabricator support, ESH&Q specialized support, process engineering support, life sciences support, etc.).

In regards to projected changes in research requirements, the expectation is that changes will be driven by the NETL’s needs as they relate to fossil fuel research.  For instance, over the past years some examples of areas where research emphasis has been directed are shale gas and liquids, rare earths, carbon capture, and carbon storage.  
 
Q.5	Given the due date for this proposal is 10/1/2015 and the evaluation will take time, would the Government consider adjusting the start date in Exhibit B – Cost Exhibit template to January, 2016? or; Should we infer from this that the 1) transition begins on October 1, 2015 (which is in GFY16) and the effective date of the contract to be used in the cost proposal is November 1, 2015?

RESPONSE:    

The cost estimate tables are a plan used to evaluate each offeror’s costs projected over the same period of time.  NETL will not mandate a start date that is unrealistic, therefore, for purposes of proposing costs for this RFP, the cost exhibits should reflect a planned transition start date of October 1, 2016, and full assumption of work by November 1, 2016.  The GFY references have been updated accordingly.

Q.6	Should the heading in File DE-SOL-0005395-Exhibit-B-Cost-Exhibits Revised 08-7-2015.xlsx, tab Exhibit B4, Detailed Costs for Transition be GFY16?

RESPONSE:    

The GFY references have been updated accordingly.








QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – June 02, 2014

Q.1	In the Cost Exhibit forms, Tabs C.1 through C.4, columns are only provided for each of the first 5 year Base Period Contract periods, while the Tabs B.1 through B.4 require indirect cost data/rates for the potential 5 year Award Term Contract periods. Will the Government add columns or provide additional Exhibits to cover the Transition Period & the each of the 5 years in the Award Term period for Exhibits C.1 through C.4?

RESPONSE:  

As indicated in L.31 Proposal Preparation Instructions – Volume III Cost Proposal paragraph 8 entitled “Format” Cost Exhibits shall be generated using the format provided in Section L, Exhibit 40b except as specifically noted below and adhere to the information provided herein.  Insert additional rows as needed. Do NOT adjust or remove the header that has been included in the Cost Exhibits. Therefore, for Exhibits C.1 through C.4 the Offeror should insert additional rows as needed.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.  

Q.2	In reference to section L.31 “Proposal Preparation Instructions-Volume III Cost Proposal”, may major or critical subcontractors, in lieu of completing the detailed breakdown of their G&A on the Cost Exhibits, submit their approved rate agreements?

RESPONSE:  

The detailed information requested in the Cost Exhibits is required to be completed even if an approved rate agreement exists.  Provision L.31 “Proposal Preparation Instructions – Volume III Cost Proposal” includes a File 4 for an Offeror or their major or critical subcontractor to provide copies of any existing approved rate agreements.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question. 

Q.3	In attempting to talk with employees of the incumbent contractor, we have met resistance and have even been informed that the incumbent contractor has advised their employees not to share any information with any other prospective competitor.  This has created an atmosphere where the incumbent employees are extremely hesitant to talk with competitors even when we explain the sole purpose of the discussion is make these employees aware of our company for the potential of future employment.  The RFP page 326, Section L.34, clearly states that it is acceptable for interested contractors to approach the current workforce – after hours and in an appropriate fashion.  We request that NETL advise the incumbent contractor employees, if they chose to do so, to participate in (i) interviews with prospective bidders or (ii) other introductory events sponsored by prospective bidding teams with the following conditions:  (a) any interview must take place outside the normal working hours of such employees and at off-site locations and (b) no proprietary or other non-public information belonging to NETL or the incumbent contractor is to be discussed.

RESPONSE:  

The RFP is a public available document and, as indicated in your question, the provision at L.34 clearly states that the Offerors may contact incumbent Contractor employees about future employment except where prohibited by law.  The provision also provides the limitations established by NETL for ensuring that these contacts do not disrupt the work currently being performed by requiring these contacts to take place outside normal working hours of the employees.  The willingness of individual employees to engage in those conversations is outside the control of the Government.  Some employees may not elect to engage in conversations until a selection has been identified.  Offerors attempting to have these conversations may want to direct the individual employees to the RFP and this provision. No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.


QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – May 21, 2014

Q.1	Clause B.1 B (Page 9): There is no commitment on the estimated level of effort required for the work. If NETL can expand the level of effort required under the contract without limitation without making any equitable adjustment to the size of the award fee pool, this could seriously erode the potential profitability of the work. While some flexibility is normal and desirable, can the Government establish some limit (e.g. 10%) above and below which there will be an equitable adjustment?

RESPONSE:  

As indicated in Clause H.17 paragraph C entitled “Review and Adjustment of Available Award Fee Pool” the award fee pool will be reviewed and a determination will be made as to whether any adjustment to the award fee pool is warranted.  Subparagraph H.17.C.3 identifies that variances and adjustments associated with Government directed changes in programmatic nature of the scope may be made.  The potential adjustment to award fee pools is further supported in Clause J.7 paragraph B.6.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.2	Regarding Clause H.8 paragraph D entitled “Contract Award Fee Reductions for Changes to Key Personnel"; the clause does not establish a time frame during which a penalty would apply. This could be interpreted to mean that the Key Personnel are committed to the project for its duration, up to 10 years, if award terms are earned. This is unreasonable and appears to be in conflict with language in Section L that implies a two-year commitment period during which the penalty would apply. Please clarify the language to state that a penalty will apply for a change within the #-year commitment period?

RESPONSE:  

For Key Personnel, the penalty is intended to be effective anytime a change in Key Personnel occurs during the life of the contract, unless a waiver is requested and approved by the Contracting Officer in accordance with the clause.  For essential personnel it is tied to their proposed commitment.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.   


Q.3	Regarding Clause H.8 entitled “Key Personnel/Program Manager”; the language "... changed for any reason ..." does not seem reasonable. For example, if the Program Manager is changed in response to a request by DOE, that case should not be subject to a penalty. Other such examples when a change should not be subject to a penalty include, but are not limited to, serious medical conditions, accidents, retirement, death and other, unforeseen or unanticipated events beyond the control of the contractor. These are cases that should be included in the final RFP for exclusion from any such penalty. It is suggested that the clause be modified to read, "... anytime the Program Manager, the initial Program Manager or any substitution approved by the Contracting Officer, is changed during the period of commitment provided to NETL by the Contractor, other than by request of DOE or due to an unforeseen situation out of the control of the Contractor, including serious medical condition, accident, retirement, or death, the total Available Award Fee Pool (sum of all individual CLIN award fee pools), may be permanently reduced, for the fee period in which the change occurs, by up to $100,000 for each and every occurrence of a change to the Program Manager." It is further suggested, that the Clause regarding other Key Personnel contemplate the cases outlined above, with the penalty reduced up to $50,000?

RESPONSE:  

NETL has established the fee pool reduction amounts based on the need for continuity of services for the contract and the importance placed on the Key Personnel positions.  It is understood that sometime changes in Key Personnel is to the be benefit of NETL in order to address performance concerns or to improve overall performance and that in some situations the change in Key Personnel may be due to catastrophic reasons (e.g. serious medical condition, death).  To accommodate such incidents, the clause includes in subparagraph D.3 the provision for the Contractor to request a waiver of all or part of the reduction from the Contracting Officer.  This provision provides the Contractor with the opportunity to present facts to be considered in the determination of a waiver.  The questions also suggest a reduction in amounts identified for the Key Personnel and Program Manager.  The amounts were reduced from the draft RFP to the final RFP.  The amounts identified in the clause are consistent with the relative importance associated with those positions and a change to those amounts is not warranted.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.


Q.5	Clause H.18, Confidentiality of Information: This provision requires Contractor employees to sign an individual confidentiality agreement under specified circumstances, and requires the Contractor to execute a NETL-approved nondisclosure/nonuse agreement with any party whose proprietary data we might be given access. The solicitation also notifies the Contractor that its confidential data may be shared with other NETL support contractors. Can NETL confirm that those NETL support contractors and their relevant personnel will be required to execute nondisclosure agreements consistent with this requirement?

RESPONSE:  

NETL confirms that this is a standard clause in all NETL major site support contracts.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.


Q.6	In Section H.34, ENVIRONMENTAL, SAFETY, AND HEALTH ON-SITE SERVICE CONTRACTS “The Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions in the performance of the work under this contract to protect the safety and health of his/her employees, other NETL employees, and the public, and to prevent damage to the environment and NETL-owned materials, supplies, equipment, facilities, and any other NETL-owned property.” Can NETL share the potential employee exposure to hazardous materials in the workplace such as beryllium, PCBs, asbestos, etc., and what is NETL’s response policy if such exposure is identified?

RESPONSE:  

NETL has established a virtual tour to familiarize potential offerors with the types of research conducted at the NETL sites.  The exposure to hazardous materials in the workplace vary with the type of research being conducted and the sites themselves.  A focused standards listing of applicable regulations and policies has been included in the electronic reading room located at http://www.netl.doe.gov/business/site-support.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.7	In Section H.34, it is stated “NETL depends on Federal and Contractor employees to staff its emergency response organization (ERO), including the HAZMAT/rescue team. The Contractor shall allow participation of his/her employees in NETL’s site-wide emergency response program. Participants shall be allowed the time necessary to fulfill ERO training obligations. The Contractor whose employees participate in emergency response functions shall be responsible for providing any additional liability insurance or supplemental insurance deemed appropriate by the Contractor for the ERO positions that their employees occupy.” Please identify the number and categories of contractor personnel required for emergency response team participation?

RESPONSE:  

As indicated, the emergency response organization is staffed by volunteers and NETL depends on Federal and Contractor employees for these functions.  The requirement is for the Contractor to allow participation and allow for time necessary to fulfill ERO training obligations.  A listing of ERO positions is not necessary in order for an offeror to respond to this solicitation.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.8	Clause H.34, ESH On-Site Service Contracts: the last paragraph of this clause (at the top of page 47) obligates the Contractor to provide “any additional liability insurance or supplemental insurance deemed appropriate by the Contractor” to cover potential liability arising from Contractor employee participation in NETL’s site-wide emergency response program. Can NETL confirm that the costs for such additional insurance are allowable costs and that any liability costs in excess of available insurance will be covered under FAR 52.228-7, Insurance – Liability to Third Persons (Clause I.92)?

RESPONSE:  

The cost for insurance is an indirect cost to the contract and should be included in the Contractor's indirect rates.  As such, cost determined to be allocable to this contract would be allowable up to the proposed limitation of indirect rates identified by the Contractor for Clause H.14, Limitation of Indirect Cost.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.9	For consistency, the Offeror is instructed to use the file name specified below. File name extensions shall clearly indicate the software application used for preparation of the documents (i.e. “.pdf” for Adobe Acrobat (version 9.5.1 or earlier) or “.doc” for Word (version 2007 or earlier). Please revise the sentence above to read, “File name extensions shall clearly indicate the software application used for preparation of the documents (i.e. “.pdf” for Adobe Acrobat (version 9.5.1 or earlier) or “.docx” for Word (version 2010 or earlier).” RFP files provided by the Government in Word or Excel are currently in .docx/.xlsx formats and would have to be converted down to Word/Excel 2003 to meet the .doc/.xls requirement. The .doc/.xls formats were used by MS Office 2003, which is no longer offered for sale or supported by Microsoft. Word 2007 and later versions use a .docx format. Moreover, files created in Word 2010/.docx and Excel 2010/.xlsx can be opened in Word/Excel 2007, which use the same .docx/.xlsx formats. The only versions of MS Office available on the Microsoft website are versions 2010-1013?

RESPONSE:

	The RFP has been amended to reflect “.doc” or “.docx” and “.xls” or “.xlsx” for formats used for Word and Excel.  

Q.10	In Section L.30, Proposal Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II, the RFP states in pertinent part: “All pages shall be single spaced, using 12 point font, 1" margins, and when printed will fit on size 8 1/2" by 11" paper. DOE believes a thorough and concise technical proposal can be prepared within the requested page limit. The 12 point font is mandatory to ensure readability of the proposal and is intended for the proposal body text. It is not the Government’s intent to require 12 point font size in headers/footers and/or to require Offerors to redo their graphics or tables to conform to this font size. However, readability is at the risk of the Offeror and graphics/tables with less than 12 point font may not be considered in evaluation of the proposal if they are not legible and clear to the evaluator.” While we will follow the established NETL proposal instructions, we recommend that NETL expressly allow 9 to 12 point font size for graphics, tables, and figures. We also request that NETL expressly allow 11x17 pages for large graphics such as organization charts, PWS illustrations, and the like?

RESPONSE:
	
	NETL has determined not to require a specific point font size for graphics, tables, and figures, which was intended so that offeror’s would not be required to redo their graphics or tables to conform to a specified font size.  However, as indicated readability is at the risk of the offeror if they elect to use anything less than the 12 point font.  NETL has determined that the identified limitations expressed in the RFP will allow an offeror to prepare a concise and thorough technical proposal in response to our requirement.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.11	In Section L.30, Proposal Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II, under the Criterion 2 requirements, the RFP states: “The Offeror shall specifically describe any unique research facilities (if any) or user-facilities that will be leveraged to support research activity described under the PWS.” Similar language was contained in Section M.5, Evaluation Factors, Criterion 2, in the Draft RFP but was removed from the Final RFP. We recommend removing this language from Section L since it is no longer a Section M, Evaluation Factor sub-criteria.
 
RESPONSE:

	The RFP has been amended to remove this reference.

Q.12	Can NETL extend the due date for proposals by two-weeks to allow additional time to respond to the RFP?

RESPONSE:

	An extension of the due date is not warranted.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.13 	Will the customer provide for a 2 page Past Performance introduction permitting an Offeror to provide reference selection rationale and relevancy matrix data?

RESPONSE:

Provision L.30 entitled “Proposal, Preparation Instructions – Technical Proposal Volume II” states in section (b) on page 304, that the relevant past performance discussion is limited to 2 pages per contract/project, per entity.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.14	Will the customer provide a fax number or e-mail address for the Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ) forms to be sent too? This would provide a receipt when sent versus mailing the PPQ through the postal system.

RESPONSE:

Past performance questionnaire forms are to be submitted to the attention of George LeMasters, Contract Specialist as identified in the RFP.  The SF-33 block 10.C includes the email address for Mr. LeMasters as george.lemasters@netl.doe.gov.  It is acceptable to email forms to Mr. LeMasters.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.15	The RFP pages which explain the format and content of the reports does not include a "Summary Report" (MS Word pages 239-256). A "Status Report" is shown on Page 240  of the RFP.  Will the Government clarify if the Summary Report and Status report are the same or otherwise reconcile the difference?

RESPONSE:

The RFP has been amended to reflect in the reporting requirements checklist the title of the report as the “Status Report”.

Q.16	There is confusion between the “date of award”; “effective date of award”; “period of performance”; and start dates for cost incurred in transition activities.  Can NETL explain these references?

RESPONSE:

As defined in the FAR, the “date of award” refers to the date signed by the Government initiating the award of a contract.  This date also authorizes the contractor to begin incurrence of certain authorized costs, such as those involved in transition activities if specified by the Government.  The “effective date of award” is the intended date for which the contractor is expected to begin actual performance, which may also involve the continuation of transition activities began earlier through completion of transition and assumption of all duties of the contract.  The “period of performance” for a specified portion of work is the anticipated in which cost may be incurred for that identified requirement.  A change to the RFP was made to reflect the period of performance for transition to be assumed to be a nominal 90-day transition period consisting of approximately 30 days prior to the effective date of the contract and no more than 60 days after the effective date.  This will align the period of performance with the cost exhibits provided.  


Q.17	Is subcontractor certified cost or pricing data required as stated in I.35, 52.215-12?  It doesn't appear to be a requirement based on the statement in L.31 (3), stating that the “other than certified cost and pricing data” is required?

RESPONSE:

The contract clause I.35, 52.215-12 is intended for subcontracts issued during contract performance if they are issued on a non-competitive, sole source basis.  The RFP does not require any certified cost and pricing data for consideration of award of this contract.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.18	The Stop Work Order, Clause F.4, 52.242-15, allows work to be stopped for a longer period of time increasing the risk to the contractor.  

RESPONSE:

The FAR Clause 52.242-15 is a standard FAR clause and the 90 time period of time is standard for contracts of this nature.   No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.19	Environmental, Safety & Health Specialist position descriptions in attachment J.8 appears to indicate that this is an Exempt position

RESPONSE:

The reference to “exempt position” is assumed to relate to an exemption from the Service Contract Act.  The determination of exempt or non-exempt is made by the employer (Offeror) subject to the guidelines and requirements of the Department of Labor as expressed in the Service Contract Act.  Questions related to exempt/non-exempt status may require th Contracting Officer to request additional justification for determinations made and any disputes on determinations will be addressed/resolved with the Department of Labor. No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.20	The RFP does not specify an anticipated number of trips, durations or locations.  

RESPONSE:

The Government does not intend to require a specified number of trips, durations, or locations.  The Offeror is expected to propose what is required based on their technical approach proposed.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.21	In reference to L.36, 52.222-46 Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees, the first couple sentences of the clause indicates that lowering the salaries and fringe benefits of professional employees is detrimental in obtaining the quality of services needed.  Since the current salaries of professional employees is known only to the incumbent contractor does this provide them with a competitive advantage in responding to the requirement?  

RESPONSE:

The FAR provision 52.222-46, Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees does not require an offeror to compensate professional employees at the same salary currently received.  The intent of this provision is to evaluate the compensation plan of offerors to ensure that professional employees are properly and fairly compensated.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.22	Will the Government provide a list of Government Furnished equipment/software available for use by the RADIS contractor for management and execution of the program?

RESPONSE:

The Government Furnished Property listings are located on the electronic reading room at http://www.netl.doe.gov/business/site-support. No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question. 

Q.23	In regards to provision L.31 Cost Discussion C(ii), if the offeror consistently follows a specified compensation methodology that is based on industry best practices and can document its pay and benefits practices, is it necessary to provide the various award numbers?

RESPONSE:

Offerors are requested to provide the award number and explain differences in proposed wages/salaries and fringe benefits to other contracts performed in the same local area by the same company (if there are differences).  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.24	Will the Government provide space for the transition?  If so, can the Government please provide details regarding the space that will be available?

RESPONSE:

The RFP identifies the Government space that may be provided for performance.  Some transition activities are of a nature that might not be suited to be performed on-site (e.g. interviewing and HR functions).  The offeror is to propose an approach/plan for transition for evaluation.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

Q.25	If a Major or critical subcontractor is proposed as time and material (T&M), can award fee % be applied to the T&M rate?

RESPONSE:

Award fee is required to be proposed by the Offeror only (not major or critical subcontractors) therefore the fee percentage would not actually be applied to the T&M rate itself.  None-the-less, each Offeror is required to provide their rationale as to how fee was applied in the cost discussion file.  No change has been made to the RFP resulting from this question.

QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES – APRIL 28, 2014

Q.1 The NETL website includes a section devoted to a (non-legal) entity called the Regional
University Alliance (RUA) comprised of Carnegie Mellon University, Penn State
University, University of Pittsburgh, Virginia Tech, and West Virginia University. The
website indicates a collaborative and integrated working relationship with these specific
five universities, NETL, and NETL’s current Research and Engineering Support
contractor URS. These entities appear to have entered into an exclusive teaming
arrangement with a single bidder. How is NETL managing this apparent unfair
competitive advantage?

RESPONSE:

The National Energy Technology Laboratory (NETL) uses a number of contractors
to support its research and development functions. The current Research and
Engineering Support (RES) contractor is URS Energy and Construction
Incorporated (URS). The Regional University Alliance (RUA) is an informal group
consisting of URS and some of its university subcontractors (Carnegie Mellon
University, University of Pittsburgh, West Virginia University, Penn State
University, and Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University). The NETL
website’s description of the RUA provides information on how the current RES
contractor, URS, has chosen to perform work under the current contract. Whether
any members of the RUA will be involved with the new contract depends on the
entities that submit proposals for the new contract and their proposed partners and
subcontractors.

NETL does not dictate the use of specific team members or whether team
arrangements are necessary to provide services under a contract. NETL
acknowledges that, in order to fulfill the requirements of the new contract, some
Offerrors may conclude that a team is necessary and therefore the RFP allows
NETL to evaluate the capabilities and experience of an Offeror in combination with
its proposed subcontractors. However, this should not be construed to be a
requirement that a team arrangement is necessary to receive an award. NETL also
cannot limit the ability of universities or other entities to enter into exclusive
arrangements in order to submit an offer. The performance work statement
included in this RFP does not require the use of any specific subcontractor or
universities. Each offer will be evaluated based on the criteria listing in the RFP.

Q.2 As described on the NETL website and in documents for NETL and the NETL-RUA
(Regional University Alliance) it is apparent that the relationship between NETL and the
RUA will continue despite the results of the subject solicitation. Can NETL provide
information on the future role of the RUA with NETL and how the selected contractor is
expected to retain, replace, or complement the role of the RUA?



RESPONSE:

NETL does not have a requirement that Offerors continue the relationship between
NETL and the RUA. As indicated in the response to Q.1 above, the RUA is an
informal group of subcontractors to the current RES contractor, URS. The future
role of any member of the RUA or of URS depends on what team arrangements – if
any – are proposed by Offerors responding to the RFP. There is no requirement or
expectation that the selected Offerrer retain, replace, or change the RUA.
Selection of the successor contractor will be based on the nature and quality of
proposals received in accordance with the identified selection criteria in Section M
of the RFP. Specifically, the subcontracting and teaming arrangements are
included in Technical Criterion 1, Management, Organization, and Staffing
Approach. Based on the proposed approach and consistent with the evaluation
criteria, an Offeror may receive strengths or weaknesses in the evaluation of its
offer based on its proposed subcontracting and team arrangements.

Q.3 Does an entity have to propose a group of universities as major or critical subcontractors
and is there a requirement to be able to engage the current RUA members in any
proposal?

RESPONSE:

No.

Q.4 Are universities prohibited from entering into exclusive partner arrangements to leverage
themselves with strategic partners to propose on this action?

RESPONSE:

No.

Q.5 The Performance Work Statement indicates support and actual research. Is the intent of
this RFP to obtain a Management and Operating Contract (M&O) for the Laboratory?

RESPONSE:

The RFP does not seek an M&O contract for the laboratory. NETL is a
Government Owned-Government Operated Laboratory. This is a support contract,
which does include support and research functions to assist the Government staff in
achieving the mission objectives of the laboratory.

Q.6 The technical approach indicates that Offerors are to discuss providing necessary staffing
for “on-site and off-site (primarily on-site) work” and the cost proposal indicates for cost
proposal purposes to assume 100% on-site. Can you clarify why the two different
statements and whether there is an expectation of off-site work?

RESPONSE:

The requirement under this RFP involves primarily on-site support (approximately
90%). However, it also includes a requirement for off-site support (e.g. field testing
and experiments; research and engineering at non-government locations) in support
of NETL requirements. Therefore, DOE requests that the technical proposal
include a discussion regarding both on-site and off-site support. Since the primary
function is on-site support, the cost proposal instructions direct that all offers are to
assume 100% on-site support, this is for cost evaluation purposes only.

Q.7 The RFP indicates that performance may involve classified material/work. Can NETL
indicate which labor categories or what work requires security clearances?

RESPONSE:

NETL does perform a limited amount of work that requires security clearances.
There are not specific labor categories or identified portions of work included in the
RFP to which an Offeror needs to respond specifically regarding security
clearances. All Offerors are placed on notice that some work may require their
employees or subcontractors to obtain security clearances and that their
management may be responsible for oversight of work that may involve classified
material/work.

Q.8 As a Government-owned Government-operated laboratory, the government makes the
final determination of R&D to be conducted and controls the budgets available to
conduct that R&D. As such, it is difficult to cost out a plan without some information
regarding FTE or rough order of magnitude by CLIN that would accommodate
anticipated budgets. Can NETL provide the historical FTE information by site location
or provide additional information regarding each CLIN to better understand how to price
each CLIN (provide FTE information by CLIN or rough order of magnitude of cost by
CLIN)?

RESPONSE:

NETL has included in the RFP the 2014 Budget information in the NETL
Introduction in Section J. In addition, historical FTE information is included in
Attachment D in Section J. NETL does not provide this information by site as it is
expected the Offeror will align staffing to their technical approach. NETL does
understand the need for additional information by CLIN in order to obtain a
magnitude in order to develop an effective cost proposal, therefore the following
rough order of magnitude is provided. This rough order of magnitude is based on
historical information and projected budget information and is provided for
informational purposes only. As indicated in the RFP, each Offeror must provide a
cost proposal (by individual cost element) for each CLIN consistent with the
proposed technical approach and the specified period of performance. The rough
order of magnitude below is not a requirement and only provided to assist Offeror’s
in development of their proposal. The rough order of magnitude includes all cost
(labor, materials, and ODCs).

CLIN 1 – Between $10 million and $20 million per year
CLIN 2 – Between $10 million and $20 million per year
CLIN 3 – Between $5 million and $15 million per year
